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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 
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I. RESPONDENTS 
 

1. Respondent One Rock Capital Partners II, LP is a limited partnership organized, existing, 
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of Delaware, with its executive offices and 
principal place of business located at 30 Rockefeller Plaza, 54th Floor, New York, NY 10112. 

 
2. Respondent FXI Holdings, Inc. is a corporation organized, existing, and doing business 

under and by virtue of the laws of Delaware, with its executive offices and principal place of 
business located at 100 Matsonford Road, 5 Radnor Corporate Center, Suite 300, Radnor, PA 
19087-4560. 

 
3. Respondent Bain Capital Fund XI, LP is a limited partnership organized, existing, and 

doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the Cayman Islands, with its executive offices 
and principal place of business located at 200 Clarendon Street, Boston, MA 02116.   

 
4. Respondent Innocor, Inc. is a corporation, existing, organized, and doing business under 

and by virtue of the laws of New Jersey, with its executive offices and principal place of business 
located at 200 Schulz Drive, Red Bank, NJ 07701. 

 
 

I I. JURISDICTION 
 

5. Respondents FXI and Innocor, and each of their relevant operating subsidiaries and 
parent entities, are, and at all times relevant herein have been, engaged in commerce, or in 
activities affecting commerce, within the meaning of Section 1 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 
12, and Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44. 

 
III. THE PROPOSED MERGER 

 
6. Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) dated March 4, 

2019, FXI and Innocor have agreed to a merger (the “Merger”) in which One Rock and Bain will 
own 74% and 26% of the combined firm, respectively. 

 
IV. THE RELEVANT PRODUCT MARKET  

 
7. The relevant line of commerce in which to analyze the effects of the Merger is the sale of 

Low-Density Conventional Polyurethane Foam used in Home Furnishings (“Low-Density 
Foam”).  Low-Density Foam, commonly referred to as “light and white” foam, is used as 
padding or cushioning in a variety of home furnishing products including  mattresses, mattress 
toppers, pet beds, pillows, chairs, and couches.  Customers do not have viable substitutes for 
Low-Density Foam.  
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IX . VIOLATIONS CHARGED  
 
16. The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 15 above are hereby incorporated by 

reference as though fully set forth here. 
 
17. The Merger described in Paragraph 6, if consummated, would constitute a violation of 

Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 18. 
 
18. The Merger described in Paragraph 6, if consummated, would constitute a violation of 

Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45. 
 
19. The Merger Agreement described in Paragraph 6 constitutes a violation of Section 5 of 

the FTC Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45. 
 
WHEREFORE, THE PREMISES CONSIDERED, the Federal Trade Commission on 

this twenty-first day of February, 2020, issues its complaint against said Respondents. 

By the Commission. 
 
 
 

 April J. Tabor 
 Acting Secretary 
 
SEAL 
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